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- THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MARYLAND
(SOUTHERN DIVISION)

ASSOCIATION OF SUPERVISORY &
ADMINISTRATIVE SCHOOL PERSONNEL

1300 Caraway Court
Largo, Maryland 20774

Plaintiff,
V. ;

PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY
PUBLIC SCHOOLS, :
Serve:
William H. Hite, Jr., Ph.D.
14201 School Lane
Upper Marlboro, Maryland 20722

AND

PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY
BOARD OF EDUCATION,
Serve:

Verjeana M. Jacobs
Chair, Board of Education

14201 School Lane

Upper Marlboro, Maryland 20722

Defendants

civitactionNo.___BKC 12 CV %7 { 3

CLASS COMPLAINT FOR

DAMAGES AND DECLARATORY RELIEF

NOW COMESk-Plaintiff, the Association of Supervisory ‘and Administrative

School Personnel, (“ASASP”) on behalf of itself and approximately 800 of its members,

Prince George’s County Public School employees, by and through undersigned counsel,

and files this class complaint for damages and declaratory relief as follows:
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|  JURISDICTION AND VENUE
L This action is authoﬁzea and instituted pursuant to 28 US.C. §1330; 42. US.C.
, §1983 heremafter “1983” 42 Usc §1985 heremaﬁer “1985”dec}aratory rehef is »
- authorized by 28 US.C.§§2201 and 2202; i Tide VI of the Civil Rights Act,
- ‘hereinaﬁer ;:‘Titie V1.” Tit[e—«Vi réQuires the‘recxplent_s of federal funds to waive Eleventh
Amendment soverexgn xmmumty
2 ThlS Court has junsdxctmn over the potent{al class parties pursuant to F.R. C P 23
PARTIES |
3. “Plaintf” -ASASP. sod b srominnth that is the exclusive collective ‘
’ bargmnmg representatxve relatmg to salary, wages, hours and other workmg condmons
for apprommataly 800 admlmstrators superv1sors and other profess:onals employed by
Prince Gcorge s .Co,unty Pubhc Schools who are designated by thek Board of Educatlon as
members of Unit I1 and Unit I1L. |
4, Some ‘of the class mémbers include Alesa Smxth, Eric Ly]ev,s‘,:_ Scott Smith,
Jacqueline Holland and iéffr‘éy P’zyarker; k .
5 Defendant Pnnce George’s County Board of Education i is the governmg body for : e
- the Prmce George s County Public Schools The membcrs of the Board of Education
during the relevant time penod include Veqeana M Jacobs, Rosalind Johnson, Edward
Burroughs, 111, Domm Hathaway Beck Peggy Higgins, Patricia Eubanks, Carolyn :
Boslon, Hem'y P. Annwood Jr. and Amber Waller. '
6.  Defendant Board is a corporate body politic organized and existing under the laws

of the State of 'Maryland_ whlch governs and has the ~uit‘1mate responsxbxlxty ~for the

! Dcfendant Board of Education’s Ethlcs and Code of Conduct states, in pan that it suppons o
: emp!oyment “of those persons best qualified to serve as school staff.” : o

2
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‘?nanagé:t.nem mp&ration and contral of the FPrince Gelorge“‘s County Public Schools
mcludmg, but not hmlted to, the promulgatmn of all orders rules, mguianom& pohues,
~and instructions relating to the hiring, supervision, recruttmem,: cmuiro! of the ,
,Supermtendem c,ducatars and all other emp!oyees cvf‘ the wumv schcml syste:m ‘
7. Defendam thham H. Hue, Jr Ph D,, was the %upcnntendent of Sc-hools at all k

umes of the events that gave rise to tlus civil acmm Defcndant the was selected by

o Defendam Board and is considered Ihe cmef cxecutlve ofﬁcer 0f' the Prmce George s

- _CountyPubhc Schools.
’ STATEMENT OF‘ FACTS
8 I'he negonated cnntract for ASASP Umt III page 6, Section 3: 1313 Pmeedure
- iv"“‘?d@‘ ;R,‘cduction’inv Fcl*w,‘ pmv;des “In ma}:m‘g/dcfermmatmns on mdmduals tcr be
,: RIFFEDS the Superintendent will take into ‘cdnsideraﬁon the total iéngth of sefvi{:e since
, m0$t reéfent.date*oi’ ihi‘r:*; in any p‘orsit}i_on‘ for which ASASP has been dééigﬁatéd as the
féxcljusi\?e represéntaﬁﬁi:f"‘ . ‘ 5
g Hc}wevén during spring 2011, Defendants t‘amﬁﬁa{e& : t&venty-seifén (27) .
, emp}byees with the Pfim:é :.Gcorge*s County Public‘:Schaol’s {szis;)us departmeﬁts imde'r-.
the gulse or pretext of a reductmn in force and/or reorgamzatmn Subsequenﬂv _ .
Deferxdants msmutud the reﬂucuan in force/reorgmnzatmn and arbnranly pmaecde& to
xmpkemmts its personnel actnon It was subsequently dlel()SEﬁ that Defendants engaged‘
in a practice and leic_y of‘ diwarale treatment in the accord af pe;rsonnel ‘decisions in the
form of promnﬁons,’rf;duéﬁbi’xsi rehirings, recalls and terminations. ' ‘
10. For example, ASASP,‘rﬁcmbcr, Alesa Smith is dd}«?eﬁm&old Aﬁfican: American

female. Ms. Smith was a writer/editor in the Communications Department. for the Prince '

L
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- ”Gearge S Cvumy Pubhu Schmls from 20{;11—(2(}03 1n ’«"003 she became a Telewsmn _

' ‘,‘&pﬁCl&th Ms. Srmth rece;ved e\tceﬂem pe;fonname evaluamms awards for producmgl\

- ,and reparung and as a wnterfedxtor She also haIds 4 Bacheicr s Degree in

: (@ommumcaimnsﬂoumahsml, a Master Qf Arts Dagrec in Wntmg and a Masier of Fme ,

i' U On Apmi 19 2010 Defendants mformeﬁ Ms Smith that her posxtzon as. ‘
| T lewswn .‘:pemahst wouid be ehmmated due to budgct reduct:ons, effectwc June 30
20}0 D&fendants represente(i that, as a result af‘ budgt:l rewnczhanon, Ms Smr{h’ f

' 'Aposnmn was clas&ﬁcd as z‘i “buyback" posmon due to additional ﬁmdmg recelved by |

- -Pnnce George s Caunty Pubhc Schcmls Ms Smnh remamed in the pes;txon durmg, the :

uxtxre 2010~2011 sdmol yea; -
12; Themafter Ms, szt’h received a letter dated March IS ?GH atatmg that the
“‘buyback” pasmon had been elim mated due to a severe reductmn in fundmg
. 3 Defendants icnmnated Ms Smnh’s emplcymem on Junb 30, 2‘2’311 under‘ the
'_guise éf a reorgamzatmn and reduct;aﬂ in forcc whxle two whxte malcs with Iess. -
.‘ _,semarxty not only kept their jobs, but one was promoted toa ’t’ngher posmon and inghcr -
oy | | v
14 Defendams mtorted that Ms Smnh s former posmon was ehmmated because it :
kwas scheduied to be ehmmated Lmder a reductlon in force in 2010 but was bought barck :

: However, there were no “buyback” posxtmns for ASASP members and ihai posxtwn was‘ =

not a “‘buyback.
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Age Discrimination, Disparate Treatment and Impact

15. Plaintiff avers Defendants harbor a pattern and practice of age discrimination in
the terms and conditions of employment for Plaintiff’'s members. Over the years,
Defendants have systematically promoted principals that are younger than forty (40)
years’ of age more so than principals more than forty (40) years of age. Particularly,
Defendants subject school principals over forty to more subjective and rigorous
performance standards than sikmilarly-situated younger principals outside of their
protective classification that includes demotions based upon performance evaluation
standards that are in contravention of state law.

16.  Additionally, some of tae subjective criteria that Defendants employ for their
discriminatory practices and policies include inconsistent application of performance
evaluation standards prescribed by the relevant collective bargaining agreements and
state law, performance evaluations conducted by non-certified individuals and promoting
less experienced and less qualified individuals into the principal pbsition.

17.  For example, On June 30, 2012, once again, Defendants violated Section 3.13 of
the collective‘barg‘éining agreements based upon age disparity when they administered
personnel decisions under the pretext of a reduction in force and/or reorganization against
Instructional Supervisors Eric Lyles, Scott Smith, Jacqueline Holland and Jeffrey Parker,
all of whom are over 40 years of age. These employees were demoted and placed into

positions that paid less and replaced by an inexperienced and less qualified individual

under forty years’ of age.

wn
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS
18.  This action is pr@pcrly maintainable as a c‘las# under F.R.C.P. 23.
19.  Plaintiff, class representative, brings this claim as a class action seeking relief
from Defendants for discrimina‘tory pefsonn’cl policies and practices against“Plaihtifffs
members based upon race and age in violation of their civil rights and constitutional
protections, in violation of the collective bargaining agreement under the guise of
personnel decisions, demotions, and reductions in force and/or reorganizations.
20.  The exact number of class members is unknown, but it is estimated that a
significant number of the current 800 person membership is subject to the arbitrary and
capricious conduct of Defendants.
21.  There is also an undefined number of former employees injured by Defendants’
conduct. The class is so numerous that joinder of individual members is impracticable.
22.  Plaintiff's injuries arise from a set of facts and circumstances common to that of
the class it seeks to represent and raises common questions of law.
- 23.  These common questions of law and fact include, but are not limited to, whether
the discriminatory personnel policies and practices of Defendants result in denial of
substantive Equal Protection under the law, as well as whether the actions of Defendants
result in violations of the Staté of Maryland Declaration of Rights and other aspects of
Maryland and federal law with respect to the denial of competitive compensation for
comparable and equal work.
24.  Plaintiff is representative of the claims of the class.

25.  Plaintiff is able to, and will, fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class.
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26.  Attomney for Plaintiff is experienced in employment rights, and in class action
litigation, and will fairly and adequately represent the interests of the class. '

27.  This action is properly maintained as a class action because (a) the prosecution of
separate actions by individual members of the class would create a risk of adjudications
which would as a practicable matter be dispositive of the interests of the other members
or would substantially impair or impede their ability to protect their interests, and/or (b)
Defendants have continued to act or refuse to act on grounds generally applicable to the
class, making final remedial and declaratory relief appropriate.

: CLAIM 1
VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. §1983 EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSE

28.  Plaintiff re-alleges Paragraphs 1 through 27, and incorporates them by reference
herein.

29.  Plaintiff avers that Defendants harbor, implement and maintain personnel policies
that discriminate in terms and conditions of employment for its members.

30.  Plaintiff alleges that the arbitrary demotion of positions for African-American
members has resulted in them receiving substantially less pay than other similarly-
situated employees outside of their protected classification because of race.

31.  Plaintiff alleges that the arbitrary terminations for African-American members
have resulted in t'hem being denied employment oppoftunities than other similarly-
situated employees outside of their protected classification because of race.

32.  Plaintiff alleges that the arbitrary demotion of older principals has resulted in
them receiving substantially less pay than other similarly-situated employees outside of

their protected classification because of age.
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33 Plamuﬂ’s members have sustamed eccnomxc as a direct result of Defendants
'vmlatlon of mghts afforded them by the Equal Protecnon Clause of the U.S. Cmnsmutaon, ~
including lost wages and beneﬁis, costs and reasonable attorney fees

, CLAIM 1§ ,
VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. 11985 CIVIL CONSPIRACY -

34. Plaintiff .re—alleges Paragraphs 1 through 33, and mjc,orporaies them by refereﬁéék
herein. ’ v ; .
35, Plainfiff aVefs tba'i’ Defend@t‘é cblludcd with one anofher in the depri'vétion of
their nghts, duues and responmblht:es to Plamtlff"s members in ccntraventmn to the
. collectlve bargammg agreements state and federal laws. ’
36.. On information or belief, Defendant Board Member Hathaway Beck met with
. ~ specific W}nte employees, assurmg them that their employmenl would be mamtamed -
: notwnhstandmg the collectwc bargammg agreements or, more 1mportanﬂy, the
controllmg prowsxens of semonty, reductxons in force (RIF), prompted by budge‘tary cuts
~ orany other set of cnrcumstances Ms. Hathaway assured those employees that she would
see to n that they would contmue to be employed by the school system ‘
37 ” On information or behef Defendants minimally admomshed .M;ember Bcck
Hathaway upon disclosure of the assurances she conveyed‘ |
38. Plamnff avers that, as elected pubhc ofﬁcxals, Defendant Board has the ethical
~and ]egal responsxbihty 1o ensure equal access to opportunities wnhout consxderatxon to
race, age or coﬂc:ctwe bargaxmng unit affiliation.
39.  Plaintiff has sustamed economic and non-economic damages as a dlrect result of
Defendants’ violation state and federal civil nghts protections affordcd class members by

the il’,legal conduct, including loss wages, costs and ‘re;aso‘nable‘iattomcy;fecs_. ‘
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: ~ CLAIM I ~
DECLARATORY RELIEF FOR VIOLATION OF THE
LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES AND THE STATE OF MARYLAND

40.  Plaintiff re-allegcs’Paragraphs 1 through 39 and incorporates them by reference
herein.

41. Plaintiff avers that an actual controversy has arisen and now exists between the
ASASP, the potential class members of ASASP, and Defendants concerning their
respective rights and duties in accordance with the laws of the United States and the state
of Maryland.

42, Plaintiff desires a judicial determination of their rights té receive comparable
terms and conditions of employment and fair and equal access to cniploymcnt
opportunities in the performance of their duties and responsibilities as employées of
Prince George's County Public Schools.

43.  Plaintiff believes that a judicial declaration is necessary and appropriate at this
time under the circumstances m order that they may achieve pay parity and all rights that
they are entitled to under the law.

44.  Plaintiff is seeking a judicial declaration that Defendants’ discriminatory policies
of age, racial and union association affiliation deprive ASASP and the potential class
members of comparable terms and conditions of employment and is a violation of their
rights in accordance with the Fifth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution and laws of the
State of Marylan_d.

45.  Plaintiff is seeking a judicial declaration that Defendants’ outdated discriminatory
policies and practices deprive them of equal compensation for the performance of equal

work.
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PRAYER F GR RELIEF

- WHEREFOI{IZ Plamuff pmys that thlS PIonorable Court gram thﬁ followmg“_f

rc:ixef nameiy
-0

. this Qomplamt are unlawful m that they vmlate the Equal Protecuonr -

i

i)

(iv)

- ’current and fmmcr emploveﬁs, the sum of $100 mtﬂmn for ’msi wagf:s and -

'Ihat this Coun determme that the cmpioymem practices complmned Qf in f '

" Clause of the Umted Statcs Constxfutmn, State of Maryland Dectarauan - ’

of R;ghts 1983 !085 and thle VI

That I)efemiarstb pay Plamuff as class reprcsematwe the sum af SSOO 000 -

for hqmdated damagcs

Tha’x Defendants pay Piamuf‘f‘ s costs and expenses and reasonable'

atmmc} ’s fe&s as pmwded in ccnncctmn wnh thls acuon

.That thxs Coun therefore grants the potenual class mambers, a group of

~ benefits, mtcrests _costs and cxpenses and raasonable attcmey fees aﬂd :

- other hquldatﬁd,damages.y

~ Respectfully submiﬁéé ‘onbehélf of Plaintiff and the class members: '

Dated: October 26,2012

10665 si‘ - -» Place, S, 3101
‘White Plains, Maryland 20695
3016459103
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